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FOCUS ON: THE MILITARY
DRILL HALL

Listed on the National Register of His-
toric Places in November, 1986, the Military
Drill Hall is now known as the Gym Annex.
It was listed as part of the Nathan C. Ricker
Thematic Nomination. Ricker achieved the
distinction of being the nation’s first grad-
uate in architecture, receiving his diploma
from the University of Illinois in 1873. He
went on to serve as both the Dean of
Engineering and as Head of the Depart-
ment of Architecture of the University of
Illinois. The discipline and determination
which enabled him to be the first to earn an
architecture degree continued throughout
his academic and professional career, dis-
tinguishing him as an educator and practi-
tioner at the Uof I.

Ricker’s second design for the University
of lllinois, the Military Drill Hall, was per-
haps his finest in terms of the engineering
skill involved. (His first design was Harker
Hall, 1877.) Constructed in 1889 in re-
sponse to the need for a large, unified space
for military training, its interior is entirely
given over to its structure, which is so
trussed as to need no interior pier support.
Ricker’s design was for a wood and steel-
trussed framework, progressive for the
1890’s, which would give “strength, light-
ness, and symmetry” to the structure.
Ricker’s competence as a designer of such
technology is evident as the interior struc-
tural system stands unaltered.

The Military Department was one part
of the initial curriculum proposed by Presi-
dent Gregory in 1867; he was of the belief
that military education was advantageous
to the universitv as well as to the voung
men enrolled therein. The first drill hall
was on the second floor of the Mechanical

" building (1. M. Van Osdel, 1872, destroved
1900). Ricker’s new building, placed on
the parade ground, was to be used only in
the instruction of militarv engineering and
tactics. Other than for the purpose of
Commencements, beginning in June of
1890, the building was used only to fulfill
its intended function until 1914, at which
time it underwent repairs and improve-
ments to make the building appropriate
for the Department of Physical Education.

It serves in this capacity todav as the
Kennev Gym Annex. The building’s ap-
pearance, excluding the additions to the
east and west of the earlv 1900’s, has not
been altered.

The Drill Hall’s significance lies chiefly
in its large, column-free interior space. Its
impressive structure, especially for 1890,
displaved Ricker’s talent for engineering
and, specifically, truss design. Itis the best
example of Ricker’s educaticnal theories
rendered in wood and steel. The construc-
tion of the Drill Hall preceeded the Uni-
versitv’s adoption of a new Architectural
Engineering curriculum in the 1890’s, and
it must have in part influenced the large
increase of incoming architecture students
after 1890. It was a visible demonstration
of what the School had to offer in terms of
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advanced structural theories as taught by
Ricker. Indeed, the School’s catalogue of
1891-1892 announced courses for “those
students preferring the mathematical and
structural side of architecture to its artistic
side, and for those who wish to acquire a
thorough knowledge of iron and steel con-
struction as it is now executed in architec-
tural structure.” The Drill Hall was just
such a progressive structure.

In 1902 the Men’s Gymnasium, designed
by Nelson Strong Spencer, was con-
structed immediately adjacent to Ricker’s
Drill Hall. Spencer, in addition to emulat-
ing Ricker’s stvle on the exterior of his
building, was also able to draw upon Rick-
er's educational methods in designing a
safe and economical building while using

Men's Gymnasium (H.E. Kenney Gym)






